
Message 

From: 

Sent: 

Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP 
(FYDI BO HF 23SPDL T)/CN =RE Cl PI ENTS/CN = 7F89 DD 16EEA4492188440F6FB67D90A2-ATH E RTON, F] 
10/07/2018 10:49: 19 

To: 
Subject: 

PS Chief Medical Officer [pschiefmedicalofficer@gov.wales] 
RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Signal that we have reached a compromise; There is considerable work remaining and we need to 
deepen liaison with LRF mechanism but I am assured that we have good engagement with OH on 
this 

Dr Frank Atherton 
Prif Swyddog Meddygol/Cyfarwyddwr Meddygol, GIG Cymru 
Chief Medical Officer/Medical Director NHS Wales 
Grwp lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/Health and Social Services Group 
Llywod ra_~Jb __ g_ymr_u._/Y._\(~!§.b Government 
Ffo n/T e I: l_ _____________ I &S ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-j 
E-bost/Email: frank.atherton@gov.wales 

From:.__ __________ NR _____________ JHSS - Office of the Chief Medical Officer) On Behalf Of Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical 

Officer) 

Sent: 10 July 2018 10:40 

To: PS to DG for Health and Social Services Chief Executive NHS Wales <pstodgforhsscenhswales@gov.wales> 

Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

From:! NR HSS - Government and Corporate Business Team) On Behalf Of PS to DG for Health and Social 

Servic~s Chief Executiv~ NHS Wales 

Sent: 10 July 2018 10:31 

To: Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) <Frank.Atherton@gov.wales>; PS to DG for Health and Social Services 

Chief Executive NHS Wales <pstodgforhsscenhswales@gov.wales> 

Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

l _______ N R _______ i 
Just checking that you'll flag this with Frank today pls. 

I-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•- I 

! NR ! 
' Ysgrifennydd Pre;ifat i Gyfarwyddwr CyffredinolGIGC/Prif Weithredwr GIG Cymru 

Private Secretary to Director General HSSG/Chief Executive NHS Wales 
Llywodraeth Cymru/ Welsh Government 
Grwp lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/ Health and Social Services Group 
Tel / Ffon: [~~~~~~~~~~~i)~~~~~~~~~~~~] 

From:l._ __________ NR ____________ !(HSS - Office of the Chief Medical Officer) On Behalf Of Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical 

Officer) 

Sent: 09 July 2018 10:50 

To: PS to DG for Health and Social Services Chief Executive NHS Wales <pstodgforhsscenhswales@gov.wales> 

Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Frank is on leave today - back tomorrow. 
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.--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1 

! NR ! 
'·-·swyddfa ·a,eifat y Prif Swyddog Meddygol 

CMO's Private Office 
! ' 

Tel/Ffon: ! l&S i 
l·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· ! 

FromL_ _________ NR __________ ___i (HSS - Government and Corporate Business Team) On Behalf Of PS to DG for Health and Social 

Services Chief Executive NHS Wales 

Sent: 09 July 2018 10:29 

To: Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) <Frank.Atherton@gov.wales>; PS Chief Medical Officer 

<PSChiefMedicalOfficer@gov.wales> 
Cc: PS to DG for Health and Social Services Chief Executive NHS Wales <pstodgforhsscenhswales@gov.wales> 

Subject: FW: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Frank 

Are you able to confirm you are content with this please? 

Thanks 
r·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1 

! NR ! 
i.·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·i 

: ·-·-·-·-·-·-· N R·-·-·-·-·-·-· i 

'vsgrifennydd Pr~ifat i Gyfarwyddwr CyffredinolGIGC/Prif Weithredwr GIG Cymru 

Private Secretary to Director General HSSG/Chief Executive NHS Wales 
Llywodraeth Cymru/ Welsh Government 
Grwp lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/ Health and Social Services Group .--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· . 

Tel / Ffon: !_ ____________ l&S -·-·-·-·-·-· ! 

From: Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales Chief Executive) 

Sent: 09 July 2018 10:15 
To: PS to DG for Health and Social Services Chief Executive NHS Wales <pstodgforhsscenhswales@gov.wales> 
cc:i NR i (HSS - OfficeoftheDG NHS WalesChiefExecutive) i-·-·-·-·-·NR-·-·-·-·-·~Gov.Wales> 
Subfect:-·Fwci:°'PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW '·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· 

Given regs comments on Friday and David misjudging his response in my view can you just ensure frank 
reflects and is happy - I will need to see reg at some point. A 

Dr Andrew Goodall 
Director General Health and Social Services/ NHS Wales Chief Executive, Health and Social Services Group 
Cyfarwyddr Cyffredinol Iechyd a Gwasanaesthau Cymdeithasol/ PrifWeithredwr GIG Cymru Grwp Iechyd a 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
Te 1/Ffon: f-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1&s·-·-·-·-·-·-·-i 
E-mail/E-'o<)sl:-·art"cttew:g,sbdall@gov. wales 

From: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) 

Sent: Monday, July 9, 2018 9:53:20 AM 
To: Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales Chief Executive); Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) 

Cc: Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) 
Subject: FW: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 
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Andrew/Frank 

I am on leave after lunch today but thought that I would try and provide information to inform any 
discussion of our involvement in the UK Pandemic. 

1. We are represented on the UK Review Board and all its sub groups and also have health 
representation on NERVTAG, the scientific group reviewing the pandemic flu planning 
assumptions 

2. A key part of the UK Review is development of a Pandemic Flu Bill that is ready to go in the 
event of a pandemic. We have policy leads engaged in the various potential asks and also 
legal support - see attached update paper 

3. On NHS and Social Care we have submitted PIDS (forwarded previously) for reviewing how 
we would respond to a surge in these areas, which are also attached and will be working 
through the work programmes of these and involving NHS and social service colleagues 

4. We will be organising a pandemic preparedness s review workshop towards the end of the 
year to further engage NHS and multi-agency colleagues 

5. I have followed up our meeting with Cabinet office/OH proposing an approach to co-production 
in reviewing the 2013 LRF Guidance and also asked is there anything else in respect of the UK 
Review ,WG needs to do above what we are already doing 

6. I have also attached a Wales position on pandemic preparedness generally ie what has been 
done and what needs to be done is also set out in the other attached paper 

The attached papers are my working documents but thought it may help to show the extent of our 
engagement and the process that we are following 

David 

David Goulding 
Cynghorydd Cynllunio rhag Argyfyngau lechyd/ Health Emergency Planning Adviser 
Head of Health Emergency Planning Unit - Pennaeth Uned Cynllunio Argyfwng lechyd 
ls-adran lechyd y Cyhoedd / Public Health Division 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth Gofal lechyd Poblogaethau / Population Healthcare Directorate 
Yr Adran lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol / Department for Health and Social Services 
Llywodra~t.h __ C_vrru:.u_.LW~l_~h Government 
Ffon I Tel: ! l&S i 
Mob i I e i_ ______________ l &S ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-r-·-·-·-' 

E-bost / email: David.Goulding@gov.wales 
Gwefan I Website : www.llyw.cymru/iechydwww.gov.wales/health 

From: Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales Chief Executive) 

Sent: 06 July 2018 17:11 

To: Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director) <Reg.Kilpatrick@gov.wales>; Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) 

<David.Goulding@gov.wales>; Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) <Frank.Atherton@gov.wales> 
Cc::·-·-·-·-·-·-·NR-·-·-·-·-·-·-iEPS - CSD) ~---·-·-·-·-·-NR·-·-·-·-·-·-tvgov.wales>; Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) 

L ! L--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· 
<lrfon. Rees@gov. wales> 

Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

David - we need to respond to Reg's advice and his reflections. I do want the views discussed to be 
conveyed if they were raised as there are choices to make here, none of which have yet sought my 
opinion. Can we pick up next week please within group - Frank can you reflect with David on these 
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issues also please - although OH have teams of individuals to do this compared with limited pairs of 
hand from a HSSG perspective - however we have an advantage of a broader NHS network of 
emergency planners so I think we need to broaden our sense of team. I suggest we now cover off a 
way forward with me involved please rather than personal views thanks. My own sense is that CS 
would wish to be ensuring Wales is properly plugged into UK contributions on such issues - - we 
should also feel that Wales has something to offer here - if this raises issue of resource, then we can 
take a view on that including the broader NHS experience. 

Andrew 

Dr Andrew Goodall 
Director General Health and Social Services/ NHS Wales Chief Executive 
Health and Social Services Group 
Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/Prif Weithredwr GIG Cymru 
Grwp lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
T el/Ffon :i l&S i 
E-mail/E-bost : Andrew.Goodall@gov.wales 

From: Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director) 

Sent: 06 July 2018 17:02 

To: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) <David.Goulding@gov.wales>; Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical 

Officer) <Frank.Atherton@gov.wales> 
Cd. NR [EPS - CSD) ~---·-·-·-·-j\.fR-·-·-·-·-·-@gov.wales>; Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales Chief Executive) 

L--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·' L--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· 
<Andrew.Goodall@Gov.Wales>; Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) <lrfon.Rees@gov.wales> 

Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

It is not necessarily a matter of agreement or otherwise. 

There was a discussion in the terms I explained below and it should properly be reflected in any 
report to the Cabinet Secretary along with the risks. As drafted, the note is partial and overly positive 
and I cannot sign up to it. 

As to whether you agree on the way the Government should work with other departments on a pretty 
important common endeavour is a matter for you and the health department to 
determine. Reputationally, it doesn't feel like we are in a strong position. 

Reg Kilpatrick 
Director for Local Government 
Cyfarwyddwr Llywodraeth Leol 
Welsh Government/Llywodraeth Cymru 
Cathays Park/Pare Cathays 
Cardiff/Caerdydd 
CF103NQ 
Te 1/Ffon i _____________ l&S ____________ L_ 

i l&S i '-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-) 
reg.kilpatrick@gov.wales 

From: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) 

Sent: 06 July 2018 16:42 
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To: Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director) <Reg.Kilpatrick@gov.wales>; Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) 

<Frank. A the rto n @gov. wa I es > .-•-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· 
.r--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·! i N R i . . . 

Cc.! NR KEPS - CSD) '-·----·-·-·-·-------!@gov.wales>, Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales Chief Executive) 
<A~drew.Goodall@Gov.Wales>; Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) <lrfon.Rees@gov.wales> 

Subject: Re: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

I don't agree 

Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director) 

Sent: Friday, July 6, 2018 4:13:35 PM 

To:, AthertonJran~ (HSS - Chief Medical Officer); Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) 
Cc:i NR [EPS - CSD); Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales Chief Executive); Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public 

'-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-' 
Health) 

Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Thanks David. I'm not sure the Cabinet Office shared such a positive view of the discussion and I 
have a couple of reservations too. These centre around our contribution to the process and the levels 
of engagement we will have in the coming months. 

You mention the discussion on the UK review programme. This was actually a request by the 
Cabinet Office and OH for us to provide some practical input and support to the development of the 
guidance. You are right that there was a consensus on the required products and certainly the need 
to update the 2011 and 2013 documents. But, while the pressures were 'noted', the approach 
whereby Welsh Government simply waits until OH produces guidance which is then revised for 
Wales, was putting considerable pressure on OH to get the products completed in the first place. 

Given that this is a UK review, they asked specifically for some resources to help in that task which 
seems a reasonable request. In view of the total emergency planning capacity across the NHS 
Wales, I would expect us to be more cooperative than we currently are. The pace of development of 
the review and guidance is therefore at risk, so this needs to be exposed to ministers along with the 
resource issues. We cannot rule out ministerial correspondence on this and I would not like to 
expose the Health Cabinet Secretary. Similarly, Welsh input to a UK communications plan will be 
critical. 

So, in the note I think you need to be frank about the resource discussion (which wasn't comfortable) 
and set out what our approach might be - along with the risks to the programme. 

Reg Kilpatrick 
Director for Local Government 
Cyfarwyddwr Llywodraeth Leol 
Welsh Government/Llywodraeth Cymru 
Cathays Park/Pare Cathays 
Cardiff/Caerdydd 
CF103NQ 
Te 1/Ffo nl_ ____________ I &S __________ ___: 
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[ l&S i 
reg.kilpatrick@gov.wales ·-·-' 

From: Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) 

Sent: 04 July 2018 15:00 

To: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) <David.Goulding@gov.wales>; Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director) 

<Reg. Kil patrick@gov. wales> 
Cc:i NR iEPS - CSD)f _____________ jl.fR-·-·-·-·-·-·-@gov.wales>; Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales Chief Executive) 

'-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· '·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· 
<Andrew.Goodall@Gov.Wales> 

Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Good summary 
Thanks, David 

Dr Frank Atherton 
Prif Swyddog Meddygol/Cyfarwyddwr Meddygol, GIG Cymru 
Chief Medical Officer/Medical Director NHS Wales 
Grwp lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/Health and Social Services Group 
Llywodraeth Cymru/Welsh Government 
Ffon/Tel j l&S i 

L--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-) 
E-bost/Email: frank.atherton@gov.wales 

From: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) 

Sent: 04 July 2018 13:21 

To: Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) <Frank.Atherton@gov.wales>; Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director) 
<Reg.Kilpatrick@gov.wales> 
Cc:[·-·-·-·-·-·-·NR-·-·-·-·-·-·KEPS - CSD) i_ ____________ ~_R_ ____________ @gov.wales>; Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales Chief Executive) 

<Andrew.Goodalr@Gov.Wales> 

Subject: FW: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Importance: High 

Both 

The Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services has asked me for feedback following the 
meeting we had with the Joint Chairs (Cabinet Office and OH) of the ongoing UK Pandemic 
Preparedness Review. I thought to provide the following points but happy to take any amendment or 
add anything, please let me know 

An early response would be appreciated as I am taking some leave shortly 

Thanks 

David 
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To Cabinet Secretary for Health & Social Services 

You ask for feedback following the visit of the UK Joint Pandemic Review Chairs ( Katherine 
Hammond , CCS Director CCS and Emma Reed OH Director), who with their officials, met with Frank 
Atherton, Reg Kilpatrick,! NR iand myself to discuss our engagement in the UK Review of 

'·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· 
pandemic Preparedness. 

The meeting was very positive and covered a number of areas relevant to the pandemic risk and 
UK/Wales preparedness. The key points were: 

• An influenza pandemic remains a top risk. The New and Emerging Respiratory Virus Threats 
Advisory Group ( NEVTAG) has stated that H7N9 (China) is currently the strain with the most 
pandemic potential. It is a disease in poultry with very limited human to human transmission and is 
being closely monitored; 

• There was a discussion on the UK review programme and an acknowledgement that Welsh 
Government officials are engaged in the working groups and has its own WG pandemic flu group to 
co-ordinate outcomes from the UK review activities; 

• Work to address a surge in NHS and social care was identified as being especially challenging and 
requiring possible changes in working /treatment practices. It was noted that a UK Moral and Ethics 
Group is being established to consider some of the issues; 

• Some aspects of the pandemic planning assumptions are set to change arising from the increase in 
population (resulting in more excess deaths and illnesses); increases in absenteeism (through illness 
and caring commitments) and possibly a planning assumption to focus on mental health planning for 
a pandemic; 

• There was consensus on the strategic products to be refreshed, particularly the 2011 UK Pandemic 
Flu Strategy ( previously signed off by 4 countries Health Ministers) and the Cabinet Office 2013 LRF 
Pandemic Flu Guidance. It was noted that there are resource issues in achieving a refresh of the 
latter 2013 Guidance and a co-production approach will be considered working with Welsh 
Government officials; 

• Progress with having a Draft Parliamentary Bill in place for passing at the time of a pandemic was 
discussed. It was noted that the timescales associated with the Bill's passage at the time of a 
pandemic is likely to require speeding up of legislative processes, including passing of any 
Legislative Consent Motions; 

• The importance of a broader UK pandemic communications strategy was identified as work to be 
take forward to underpin the UK Health Communications strategy that is currently being finalised. 
Cabinet Office will be sharing a project initiation document to kick of this broader communications 
work; 

• Finally the implications of a pandemic on business continuity and sector resilience was seen as a key 
area that would benefit from greater profile and further consideration would be given to this. 

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
Llywodra~th_ Cymru __ / We_lsh., Government 
Ffon I Tel:! l&S ! 
Mob i I e !-·-·-·-·-·-·-·,&-s·-·-·-·-·-·-·-!·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-_; 

E-bost / email: Davici.Goulding@gov.wales 
Gwefan I Website : www.llyw.cymru/iechydwww.gov.wales/health 

From: Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director) 
Sent: 02 July 2018 17:17 
To: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) <David.Goulding@gov.wales>i NR :(EPS - CSD) !~~~----·-·-·-ji;iR-·-·-·-·-·-·-@g ov. wa I es> L--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·" 

Subject: FW: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Grateful to see the update in draft please David. 

Reg Kilpatrick 
Director for Local Government 
Cyfarwyddwr Llywodraeth Leol 
Welsh Government/Llywodraeth Cymru 
Cathays Park/Pare Cathays 
Cardiff/Caerdydd 
CF103NQ 

Tel/Ffo1 l&S ! 
i i 
i..·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-j 

reg.kilpatrick@gov.wales 

From: PS Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services 
Sent: 02 July 2018 12:12 
To: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) <David.Goulding@gov.wales>; PS Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social 
Services <PS.CabSecHealthandSS@gov. wales> 
Cc: PS First Minister <PS.FirstMinister@gov.wales>; PS Cabinet Secretary for Local Government and Public Services 
<PS.CabSecLGandPS@gov.wales>; PS Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Transport <PS.CabSecEandT@gov.wales>; PS 
Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs <PS.CabSecEPandRA@gov.wales>; Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG -
NHS Wales Chief Executive) <Andrew.Goodall@Gov.Wales>; Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer) 
<Frank.Atherton@gov.wales>; PS Permanent Secretary <PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales>; PS SpecialAdvisers 
<PSSpecialAdvisers@gov.wales>; Burke, Tracey (EPS - Director General) <Tracey.Burke@gov.wales>; Slade, Andrew 
(ESNR - Director General) <Andrew.Slade@gov.wales>; Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director) <Reg.Kilpatrick@gov.wales>; 
Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) <lrfon.Rees@gov.wales>; Heaney, Albert (HSS - Social Services & Integration) 
<Albert.Heaney@gov.wales>; Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) <lrfon.Rees@gov.wales>; Jordan, Joanna (HSS -
Mental Health, NHS Governance and Corporate Services) <Joanna.Jordan@gov.wales>; Davey, Alistair (HSS - Social 
Services & Integration) <Alistair.Davey@gov.wales>;i NR iHSS - Delivery & Performance) 

.-•-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· '·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-j . ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-. 
i NR :@gov.wales>; Lyons, Marion (DHSS - DHP - Public Health) <Marion.Lyons@gov.wales>;:_ _____________ NR _____________ ! 
'(·oF·M·-~-i~g~i-·services Department) c-·-·-·-·-·N"i:i"-·-·-·-·-·-·~ gov.wales>{~.-~.-~.-~.-~.-~.-~~lf.·~--~--~--~--~]oFM - Legal Services Department) 
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r·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·~~R~~~~~~~~~~~] m.eo_\l,W.al.es>;i N R ~@gov. wa les>r-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·N-R-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·H SS - D H p Pu bi i C 

LH~-;iti)[ N R @) g~~~-~~-,~~-;;r·-·-·-·-·-·NR-·-·-·-·-·-·-!TH"ss-·~- D H p pub Ii C H e~-frhrr-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-NR·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-@gov. wa I es >; 
.-•-·-·-·-·-·-·-~----·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·• p•-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·• L .•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.•.• 

i NR bFM - Const Affairs & lnter-Gov Relations)! NR Pgov.wales> 
'-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·· '-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-~l-'-~~~ 
Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Thanks David, 

The Cabinet Secretary has noted and commented: 

"Is there an update following the joint chairs visit?" 

Grateful if you could respond to the Cabinet Secretary's query please? 

Regards, 

[ _______ N_R _______ j 

From: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) 

Sent: 11 June 2018 11:00 
To: PS Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services <PS.CabSecHealthandSS@gov.wales> 

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

Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) < lrfon.Rees@gov.wales>; Heaney, Albert (HSS - Social Services & Integration) 

<Albert.Heaney@gov.wales>; Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) < lrfon.Rees@gov.wales>; Jordan, Joanna (HSS -

Mental Health, NHS Governance and Corporate Services) <Joanna.Jordan@gov.wales>; Davey, Alistair (HSS - Social 

Services & Integration) <Alistair.Davey@gov.wales>j NR tHSS - Delivery & Performance) ,·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·­
i·-·-·-·-·-NR·-·-·-·-·-@ gov.wales>; Lyons, Marion (DHSS - DHP·-~--Pu-bfrc-He"alth) <Marion.Lyons@gov.wales>). NR ! 

'(i:S-i=-rvf ~Tegar'se rvi ces De pa rtm_~_l]!.lC.~--~--~--~--~--~j~:_tf --~--~--~--~--~--~-~ gov. wa I es ~r~--~--~--~--~--~--~~-R--~--~--~--~~J(<?£_1Y.1 __ ~-~':.~~~--5-': r~ic-es"Uej:;"~fiTlifeRt) 
i-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-jl,fR-·-·-·-·-·-·-·~ gov. wa I es>L_ _________________ -·-·-·-·-·-·~-~---·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· i@gov. wa les> ;i N R i ( H SS - D HP Pu bi i c 
LHe-aith-n--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·N-R-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·rcv gov. wa I es > j N R ( H SS - D H p pub Ii C H ea0ithf ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-NR·-·-·•·-·-·-·-·-·-·1@gov. wa I es >; 

i-·-·-·-·-·NRL.---·-·-T(<5F"ivi-::-·co·nst-Aff airs & I nte ;~G~-~-R~-1-;ti~-~~r-·-·-·-·N·R·-·-·-·-·-!@gov. wa I es>'-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-' 

s~i>iect~-iE·~--p AND EM IC I N FLU EN ZA u K REV I EW '·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·. 

SENSITIVE - For Information 

UK Pandemic Influenza Review 

Further to my previous update, I attach below, for your information, a copy of the letter sent to 
Members of the National Security Council by the Secretary of State for Health and Minister for the 
Cabinet Office updating Council members on progress with the UK review of pandemic 
preparedness. 

The letter sets out progress in pandemic preparedness over the last 12 months and key actions to 
take forward work over the next 12 months. Welsh Government officials are appropriately engaged in 
the various work streams that underpin the Review. The joint chairs of the Review Board are also 
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visiting each Devolved Administration to discuss progress and we will be hosting their visit at the end 
of this week. 

In relation to the Pandemic Flu Bill, we have made progress in identifying the devolved asks and have 
raised with the UK some issues and registered our interest in reserved areas. I anticipate that, in due 
course, there will be a need to submit an MA seeking Ministerial agreement to devolved asks that 
require a Legislative Consent Motion and how that may best be sought at the time of a pandemic. 

There is a range of other activities that also need to be progressed, as part of the Review, including 
further considering the implications on health and social care of a worst reasonable foreseeably 
pandemic and providing any additional national guidance and support to the operational planning. I 
also expect that an outcome of the Review will be a revision of the 2011 UK Pandemic Strategy that 
was previously agreed by Ministers from all four nations. 

« File: CDL-1614.pdf » 

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
Llywodra~th._Cvmcu_LW.e.l~h Government 
Ff on I Te I L _____________ ~-~~-------------___] 
Mobi lei _______________ l&S ______________ i 
E-bost / email: David.Goulding@gov.wales 
Gwefan I Website : www.llyw.cymru/iechydwww.gov.wales/health 

From: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) 

Sent: 06 April 2018 10:22 

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

<Albert.Heaney@wales.gsi.gov.uk>; Rees, lrfon (HSS - DHP Public Health) <lrfon.Rees@gov.wales>; Jordan, Joanna (HSS -

Mental Health, NHS Governance and Corporate Services) <Joanna.Jordan@gov.wales>; Davey, Alistair (HSS - Social 

Services & Integration) <Alistair.Davey@wales.gsi.gov.uk>!. NR ~HSS - Delivery & Performance) 
i·-·-·-·-·-·N·R·-·-·-·-·-·:@gov. wa les>; Lyons, Marion ( D H SS - D HP - p~"6Tfc.HeaTthf<M a rion. Lyons@gov. wa les>; r·-·-·-·-·-·-·NR-·-·-·-·-·-·-: 
'-{61=-rv·fci5"~Tega I Services Depa rtm entc·-·-·-·-·-·-NR·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·~ gov. wa I es> r-·-·-·-·-·-·-·NR-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-~ FM co - Leg~i·s-~~~i-~-~~----·-·-·-·-· 

De pa rtm e nt) :·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·N·R·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1v gov. ;~,~~;r·-~--~--~--~--~--~-N~R~--~----·-·-·-·~ SS - D HP·P-~bii~--H-~~-,t-hf°-· 
r·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·NR·-·-·-; _______ ~wales~gsLliov'. u k>; Downt~-ri~"Maff r Hss·~~~:Mk~_WG.J2.l.~M?tt. Do wnto n.@._&C?.Y.:'!'!.~.I_E:~~-~--8-~vi ngto n, Gareth 

'-{R~s::warl<fcfrce& OD) <Gareth. Bevi ngto n@gov. wa I es>; : _______________ ~-~---·-·-·-·----1 E PS - S ED) {__ ___________ N R _____________ ~ gov. wa I es>; 
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c~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~_if ~~~~~~~~~~J E PS - CS ~}_f ~~~~~J~~~~~~~~l~ gov. wa I es>; i·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·~-·-·-;=:=:=:=:~~:=:=:c:~=:=:-.=:=:=:=:=:;-·-·-· ~gov. wa I 7-~L.-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·, 
<Wyn.Price@gov.wales>~ NR !(HSS - DHP Public Health)L. NR _g) gov.wales>j NR i 
( H SS - D H p pub Ii C H ea Ith) i----------NR ______ .; _____ "§) gov. wa I es > ;! __________ NR-·-·-·-·-·1 ( H SS-D pH-PO p u I ati On H ea It hcLarer·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-' 

!_ _________ N R ________ ___] @gov. wa I e~;--·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·' '"·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·1 

Subject: RE: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 

Cabinet Secretary For Information 

I wanted to further update you on the Pandemic Influenza UK Review and in particular specific work to 
establish a Pandemic Flu Bill that would be readily available to pass into legislation in the event of a 
pandemic. The need for a Bill was a recommendation following the UK Pandemic Flu Exercise Cygnus. 

Since summer 2017, there has been active engagement across the four nations to prepare a single 
UK wide draft Bill building on the four nation approach set out in the UK Influenza Pandemic 
Preparedness Strategy (2011 ). Last month, a four nations workshop was held to establish a timetable 
to complete the draft Bill with the intention for the Bill to be held internally and providing a menu of 
options to be brought forward, if required, to support a four nation response to a severe pandemic. 

The UK Government is working towards an end of April 2018 deadline to substantially complete its 
drafting of UK Government clauses and relevant supporting documentation and this information is 
being shared with us and is being used to inform the Devolved Administration's work. The aim is to 
have all the work completed by summer 2018. The work for us is to have appropriate Ministerial 
agreement and: 

* confirm proposed legislative flexibilities identified by UK Departments pose no concern to 
us(i.e. policy consensus); 

* identify whether legislation is necessary to achieve agreed legislative flexibilities for 
devolved issues; 

* draft clauses for any additional legislative asks not covered by the core draft legislation 
prepared by UK Government on the basis of reserved competence; 

* identify a process for taking Bill through Devolved Legislature at express timetable in a 
pandemic situation; 

* input into supporting documentation e.g. explanatory notes and legal issues 
memorandum. 

Welsh Government policy colleagues have been identified to provide an appropriate input into various 
clauses of the Bill and there appears to be very few areas that will fall entirely to devolved 
competence. These may, but not confirmed, may include hospital discharges, mental health care and 
perhaps health protection measures as well as school closures and use of fire personnel. There are 
also non devolved areas that we have an interest in such as emergency registration of health care 
workers (nurses, midwifes, paramedics etc ) and the approach being taken is to have an interest in all 
areas that the Bill will cover. 

There is Welsh Government legal support, throughi Name Redacted l and I am advised that for the UK 
Bill to work in a pandemic situation, the intention would be to table a Legislative Consent Motion at 
the time with ideally all the preparatory work being done beforehand. 

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
Llywodrae~h _Cymru__l_ Wels_h Government 
Ffon I Tel: ~ l&S : 
Mob i I a-·---------·---iis·-·-·-·-·-·-·-r-·-·-·-·-·' 
E-bost'""r eman:· David:Goulding@gov.wales 
Gwefan I Website : www.llyw.cymru/iechydwww.gov.wales/health 

From: Goulding, David (HSS - DHP Public Health) 
Sent: 05 December 2017 09:50 
To: PS Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services 
Cc: PS First Minister; PS Cabinet Secretary for Local Government and Public Services; PS Cabinet Secretary for Economy 
and Transport; PS Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs; Goodall, Andrew (HSS - DG - NHS Wales 
Chief Executive); Atherton, Frank (HSS - Chief Medical Officer); PS Permanent Secretary; PS SpecialAdvisers; Burke, 
Tracey (EPS - Director General); Slade, Andrew (ESNR - ERA - Director); Kilpatrick, Reg (EPS - LG Director); Rees, Irfon 
(HSS - DHP Public Health); 'Heaney, Albert (HSS - Social Services & Integration)'; Rees, Irfon (HSS - DHP Public Health); 
Jordan, Joann_c! __ (_lj_$? __ :J:'.1-~.o.tal Health, NHS Governance and Corporate Services); 'Davey, Alistair (HSS - ~qf.Lc!L.$.!=_ryj_<;_~?.- & 

0 
__ _Integration)';i_ __________ ~~----·-·-___tHSS - Delivery & Performance); Lyons, Marion (DHSS - DHP - Public Health)L._ ________ ~-~----·-·-·-·! 

[_ ___ NR __ .l (HSS - Communications) 
Subject: PANDEMIC INFLUENZA UK REVIEW 

Cabinet Secretary - For information 

The National Security Council (Threats, Hazards, Resilience and Contingencies), chaired by the 
Prime Minister has asked for a Review of the UK Pandemic Influenza preparedness to be 
undertaken. The Review follows on from the UK Pandemic Influenza Exercise Cygnus held in 
October 2016, which you participated in, and against the background of an influenza pandemic 
remaining our top national risk. The Review is also timely given that the current UK Pandemic 
Influenza Strategy ( signed off by the 4 UK Health Ministers) was agreed back in 2011. 

This is to let you know that Welsh Government officials are involved in the UK Review and are 
represented on the UK Pandemic Influenza Readiness Board (PFRB) that is being jointly chaired by 
senior officials from the Cabinet Office and OH. The link above is to a paper, to be discussed at the 
next Board meeting, which provides a brief outline as to how we are engaging in the Review. 

David 

David Goulding 
Cynghorydd Cynllunio rhag Argyfyngau lechyd/ Health Emergency Planning Adviser 
Head of Health Emergency Planning Unit - Pennaeth Uned Cynllunio Argyfwng lechyd 

INQ000180484_0012 



ls-adran lechyd y Cyhoedd / Public Health Division 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth Gofal lechyd Poblogaethau / Population Healthcare Directorate 
Yr Adran lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol / Department for Health and Social Services 
Llywodraeth Cymru / Welsh Government 
Ffon I Tel ~ l&S : .--·-·· "i.. ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-· . -·-·-·-·-· 
Mobile ! l&S i 

i-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-•-• I 

E-bost / email: David.Goulding@gov.wales 
Gwefan I Website : www.llyw.cymru/iechydwww.gov.wales/health 
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